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I. 	 INTRODUCTION

The Defendants' motions to dismiss for lack of subject matter jurisdiction should be

denied. A federal district court has subject matter jurisdiction to determine whether an order

issued by a state agency conflicts with federal law. Specifically here, this Court has jurisdiction

to determine whether an order by the North Dakota Public Service Commission ("NDPSC")

conflicts with the provisions of the Telecommunications Act of 1996, Pub. LA. No. 104-104,

110 Stat. 56 (1996) (the "1996 Act"), and the complaint properly states that claim.'

Furthermore, state law principles of res judicata have no application here because Plaintiff

Midcontinent is seeking legal review of an agency decision, not a new trial or a new hearing on

the same body of facts adjudicated in another forum. The administrative, factual record is

complete; no discovery is necessary. Moreover, state law principles of res judicata cannot

impede district court review of state agency interpretations of federal law.

Missouri Valley is an incumbent telecommunications service provider with a federal

statutory duty to provide interconnection to competitive telecommunications providers like

Midcontinent, so that competitors can provide full services and fairly compete for customers.

This case arose because Missouri Valley refused to grant Midcontinent facilities-based

interconnection as required by Section 251(c) of the Communications Act. Missouri Valley

relied on an exemption created by Section 251(f) of the Communications Act, which limits the

interconnection obligations of certain rural telephone providers. Midcontinent challenged

Missouri Valley's refusal to interconnect, asking the NDPSC to determine that Missouri Valley

The portions of the 1996 Act relevant to Midcontinent's claim are codified as part of
Title II of the federal Communications Act of 1934, as amended. See 47 U.S.C. §§ 201-276 (the
"Communications Act). For convenience, these statutes will be referred to as provisions of the
1996 Act, but cited as codified in the Communications Act.
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did not qualify for the exemption under Section 251(f). The NDPSC denied Midcontinent's

petition in the Rural Exemption Order. This case seeks review of whether the NDPSC correctly

interpreted and applied the 1996 Act in the Rural Exemption Order  and raises related federal

claims against Missouri Valley.

Defendants move to dismiss, arguing that this Court lacks the authority to "retry" the

case, but Midcontinent does not seek a retrial. Midcontinent is asking the Court to determine

whether the Rural Exemption Order  correctly applied federal law based on the established

administrative record. Defendants argue the Court lacks subject matter jurisdiction to make that

determination and that res judicata bars retrial of Midcontinent's claims. These arguments are

wrong as a matter of law.

The jurisdictional issue in this case is controlled by the Supreme Court's decision in

Verizon Md. Inc. v. Pub. Serv. Comm'n of Maryland,  535 U.S. 635, 641-44 (2002) ("Verizon

Maryland") and the Eighth Circuit's decision in Iowa Network Servs, Inc. v. Qwest Corp., 363

F.3d 683, 685-86 (8th Cir. 2004) ("Iowa Network Services"), which held that federal courts , have

subject matter jurisdiction to review state commission interpretations of the 1996 Act.

Defendants' res judicata argument is foreclosed by the Eight Circuit decision in Rural Iowa

Indep. Tel. v. Iowa Utils. Bd., 362 F.3d 1027 (8th Cir. 2004) ("RIIT"), which held that the

1996 Act abrogates the res judicata defense to the extent it would interfere with federal court

review. In fact, the only courts to consider challenges to state commission rural exemption

determinations under Section 251(f) have found that they have subject matter jurisdiction over

those claims. Defendants cite no cases to the contrary.

2
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II. BACKGROUND AND STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS 

A. 	 Interconnection Under the 1996 Act

Before Congress enacted the 1996 Act, nearly all local telephone service in each market

was offered by monopoly providers and regulated exclusively by state utilities agencies like the

NDPSC. See AT&T Corp. v. Iowa Utils. Bd., 525 U.S. 366, 371 (1999) ("Iowa Utilities

Board"). The 1996 Act amended the Communications Act to create a new federal regime that

closely regulates local telephone competition and broadly assumes federal jurisdiction over local

telephone service; this "fundamentally restructure[d] local telephone markets," prohibited states

from "enforce[ing] laws that impede competition," and assigned to the former monopoly service

providers — dubbed incumbent local exchange carriers ("ILECs") — "a host of duties intended to

facilitate market entry" by competitive local exchange carriers ("CLECs"). Id.; 47 U.S.C.

§§ 153(26) (defining "local exchange carrier"), 251(h) (defining "incumbent local exchange

carrier").

ILECs typically own and control ubiquitous telecommunications networks that reach

every residence in a local telephone market, enabling the completion of telephone calls to each .

customer location. See Iowa Utilities Board,  525 U.S. at 726. Without the ability to

interconnect with the ILEC's network in a community, a CLEC could not offer competitive ,

telephone services, because it would not be able to connect a customer's calls with all other

telephone users. See Promotion of Competitive Networks in Local Telecommunications

Markets, Notice of Pro osed Rulemakin and Notice of In ui and Third Further Notice of

Proposed Rulemaking, 14 F.C.C.R. 12673, 12685 ¶1120-22 (2002). Accordingly, one of the

fundamental duties assigned to ILECs is the duty to interconnect their networks with

competitors, consistent with the requirements of Sections 251 and 252 of the Communications

Act. See Iowa Network Services,  363 F.3d at 685-86.

3
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Specifically, ILECs must fulfill the exacting requirements of Section 251(c), which

assigns them the following duties: (1) to negotiate interconnection agreements in good faith;

(2) to provide interconnection at any technically feasible point; (3) to provide network elements

on an unbundled basis; (4) to provide services at wholesale rates for resale; (5) to provide

competitors notice of network changes; and (6) to allow competitors to collocate their facilities

on the incumbent carrier's premises. See 47 U.S.C. §§ 251(c). ILECs must negotiate

interconnection agreements with CLECs under a comprehensive framework outlined in Section

252, see 47 U.S.C. § 252(a)-(c), and they must provide the services specified by Section 251(c)

on just, reasonable, and nondiscriminatory rates under Section 252(d). See 47 U.S.C. § 252(d).

Ultimately, all interconnection agreements must be submitted to and approved by the relevant

state commission to become effective. 2

Congress recognized that ILECs serving rural areas might sometimes face special

economic challenges when they have smaller and more dispersed populations that might justify

delaying application of Section 251(c). See Amendment of the Commission's Rules to Establish

Competitive Service Safeguards for Local Exchange Carrier Provision of Commercial Mobile

Radio Services, Report and Order, 12 F.C.C.R. 15668, 15712 77 (1997). Accordingly, the

1996 Act created an exemption from the Section 251(c) requirements for certain qualified rural

telephone companies. 3 This "rural exemption" was not intended to insulate rural ILECs from

competition. See Implementation of the Local Competition Provisions in the

2 	See 47 U.S.C. § 252(e). The obligations placed on ILECs are in addition to the
requirements placed on all LECs, which include the duty to interconnect under Section 251(a),
47 U.S.C. § 251(a), and the duty to provide the carrier services enumerated in Section 251(b).
See 47 U.S.C. § 251(b); see also Wireless World, L.L.C. v. Virginia Islands Public Services
Commission, 2005 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 15061 *8-9 (D. V.I. July 15, 2005) ("Wireless World").
3 See 47 U.S.C. §§ 251(f). It is undisputed that Missouri Valley meets the statutory criteria
for a rural telephone company as defined by the Communications Act. See 47 U.S.C. § 153(37).

4
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Telecommunications Act of 1996, Interconnection between Local Exchange Carriers and

Commercial Mobile Radio Service Providers, First Report and Order, 11 F.C.C.R. 15,499,

16,118 (1996) (the "LCO"). Rather, the exemption merely delays application of Section 251(c)

to rural ILECs until (1) a competitor provides the rural carrier with a bona fide request for

interconnection, services, or network elements; and (2) a state commission determines that the

requested interconnection would not be unduly economically burdensome, is technically feasible,

and is consistent with the universal service provisions of 47 U.S.C. § 254. See 47 U.S.C. ..

§ 251(f)(1)(A). Upon a CLEC's bona fide request for interconnection, Section 251(f)(1)(B)

requires the state commission to conduct an inquiry and terminate the rural exemption, if it finds

the elements of Section 251(f)(1)(A) are met. See 47 U.S.C. § 251(f)(1)(B).

B. 	 The Roles of State Commissions and Federal Courts Under the 1996 Act

In addition to fundamentally altering the structure of local telephone markets, the 1996

Act radically changed the role of state utility commissions like the NDPSC, which previously

had exercised nearly complete regulatory control over local telephone service. See Iowa

Network Services, 363 F.3d at 686 ("The 1996 Act also thrust the federal government into the

local telephone market regulatory arena, which had previously been the exclusive domain of the

states.") (citation omitted). Whereas previously questions regarding local telephone competition

were decided by state agencies enforcing state law, the 1996 Act required local markets to "be

opened to competition according to standards established by federal law." MCI Telecomm.

Corp. v. Bell Atl. Pa.,  271 F.3d 491, 497 (3d Cir. 2001). This meant the federal courts undertook

a key role in the process. See Ill. Bell Tel. Co. v. Worldcom Techs., Inc.,  179 F.3d 566, 568 (7th

Cir. 1999) ("Through the [1996 Act] Congress has opened the door to competing local exchange

carriers and has inserted . . . the federal courts into the previously state-regulated monopoly.").

5
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Shortly after passage of the 1996 Act, the Supreme Court recognized that this change in

state commission responsibilities means that state commission decisions interpreting the 1996

Act reviewable by the federal courts. The Court specifically stated that "Congress, by extending

the Communications Act into local competition, has removed a significant area from the states'

exclusive control," Iowa Utilities Board, 525 U.S. at 381 n.8, and that "there is no doubt . . . that

if the federal courts believe a state commission is not regulating in accordance with federal

policy they may bring it to heel." Id. at 378 n.6.

Subsequent Supreme Court and Eighth Circuit cases have concluded that state

commission decisions interpreting and enforcing the 1996 Act are subject to federal court review

pursuant to federal question jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. § 1331. See Verizon Maryland, 535

U.S. at 641-44; Iowa Network Services, 363 F.3d at 690-694. The 1996 Act specifically confers

jurisdiction on the federal courts to review state commission decisions approving or rejecting

interconnection agreements. 47 U.S.C. § 252(e). And, as the Supreme Court in Verizon

Maryland made clear, the federal courts' jurisdiction is not limited to cases described in Section

252(e); federal question jurisdiction under Section 1331 extends to any state commission

interpretations and applications of the 1996 Act. 535 U.S. at 641-644. The Eighth Circuit has

applied this principle in two cases that arose from state commission interpretations and

applications of Section 251(b)(5) of the 1996 Act. See RITT, 362 F.3d at 1030; Iowa Network

Services, 363 F.3d at 692. These cases hold that when state commissions like the NDPSC

conduct proceedings pursuant to the 1996 Act, they are acting pursuant to federal law, and. their

determinations are subject to review by federal courts for compliance with federal law. See Id.

C. 	 The Proceeding Below

This case arises from a dispute between Midcontinent, a CLEC seeking to provide

facilities-based competitive telephone services to consumers in the Williston, North Dakota local

6
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telephone exchange, and Missouri Valley, the ILEC for the Williston community. See Cornpl.

11, 13. Midcontinent made a bona fide request for facilities-based interconnection with

Missouri Valley, but Missouri Valley denied Midcontinent's request, claiming the rural

exemption under Section 251(0. See id. 38, 40.

Midcontinent initiated a proceeding before the NDPSC by providing notification pursuant

to Section 251(0(1)(B) that it had made a bona fide request for facilities-based interconnection

and by requesting a determination that the rural exemption did not bar Midcontinent's request.

Rural Exemption Order at 1. Midcontinent argued that Missouri Valley could not rely on the

rural exemption for two reasons. First, Missouri Valley had waived any right to rely on the rural

exemption both (1) by promising the NDPSC (when Missouri Valley first acquired the Williston

exchange) that Missouri Valley would continue performing the existing interconnection

agreements of its predecessor, Citizens Communications (which included a full, facilities-based

interconnection agreement with Midcontinent); and (2) by entering into a subsequent, NDPSC-

approved resale interconnection agreement pursuant to Section 251(c)(4) of the 1996 Act (which

contradicted Missouri Valley's assertion of exemption from the 1996 Act's requirements). See

Compl. ¶1142, 46-47.

Second, Midcontinent argued and demonstrated that, even apart from Missouri Valley's

waiver of any right to rely on the rural exemption, the exemption must be terminated because

Midcontinent satisfied each factor in Section 251(f)(1)(A), i.e., the requested interconnection (1)

was not unduly economically burdensome; (2) was technically feasible; and (3) was consistent

with the universal service requirements of Section 254. See id. 748-51

In the NDPSC proceeding, Midcontinent raised several issues that required the NDPSC

to interpret federal law. First, Midcontinent's waiver argument required the NDPSC to

7
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determine whether Section 251(f)(1) permitted Missouri Valley to engage in selective waivers of

its rural exemption — claiming it in some cases while not in others. See Compl. in 47-48, 73.

The statutory language of Section 251(f)(1) does not authorize selective waivers, and the NDPSC

was required to determine whether selective waivers were permissible under that federal statute.

47 U.S.C. § 251(f)(1).

Second, Midcontinent raised the issue of the appropriate standard for satisfying the

statutory requirements that Midcontinent's requested interconnection was "not unduly

economically burdensome." See Compl. ¶ 50. Midcontinent argued that this required the

NDPSC to find that Missouri Valley would incur economic costs over and above those that

would be caused by facilities-based competitive market entry under Sections 251(a) and (b), with

which Missouri Valley already is required to comply, regardless of the rural exemption. See id.

56. Midcontinent's argument required the NDPSC to construe the meaning of the statutory

language "unduly economically burdensome."

Third, Midcontinent argued, consistent with the Eight Circuit's decision in Iowa Utilities

Board v. Federal Communication Commission,  219 F.3d 744 (8th Cir. 2000), that the "unduly .

economically burdensome" standard required the NDPSC to consider Missouri Valley's overall

financial condition, including an examination of the relationship between Missouri Valley and its

Montana-based parent company, Nemont Communications ("Nemont"). See Compl. ¶ 57. The

record shows that Nemont had structured its relationship with Missouri Valley to place a

disproportionate share of the operating and financial costs of serving the Williston exchange . on

Missouri Valley while shifting revenues to Nemont and other Nemont subsidiaries. See id.

Midcontinent claimed that a review of Missouri Valley's financial condition would demonstrate

8
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that the requested interconnection was not "unduly economically burdensome" as intended in the

federal statute. See id.

Fourth, Midcontinent argued that to satisfy the Section 254 "universal service" standards

referenced in Section 251(f)(1)(A), Midcontinent need only show that interconnection would not

cause a net negative impact on Missouri Valley's ability to satisfy its existing universal service

requirements and that speculation about potential future requirements is inappropriate. See

Compl. 58, 75. Midcontinent argued the NDPSC was required under federal law to consider

evidence of positive impact on universal service that would be realized if the rural exemption

were lifted and Midcontinent were allowed to enter the market. See Compl. ¶ 52. Midcontinent

argued that its request satisfied that federal standard. See id. 	 52, 58, 75.

Fifth, Midcontinent argued that the NDPSC's "unduly economically burdensome" and

universal service analyses must incorporate Missouri Valley's eligibility for federal "safety

valve" funding pursuant to the rules of the Federal Communications Commission (the "FCC").

See Compl. TT 51, 58; see also 47 C.F.R. § 54.305. Missouri Valley's eligibility for funding

from the universal service fund that would offset substantially any economic impact on Missouri

Valley's universal service activities is a relevant factor under federal law. See Compl. 75.

Missouri Valley did not contest that Midcontinent had made a bona fide request for

interconnection or that the requested interconnection was "technically feasible," so those

requirements were established. Rural Exemption Order  in 9, 34-35. Missouri Valley opposed

Midcontinent's request, however, arguing that interconnection was unduly economically

burdensome and would interfere with Missouri Valley's universal service activities under

Section 254. See, e.g., id. at VII 13, 20, 24, 38-39. Missouri Valley denied it had waived its rural

exemption; argued that the economic burden analysis should be restricted to Missouri Valley,

9
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without considering its relationship to Nemont; claimed interconnection would interfere with

Missouri Valley's satisfaction of future potential universal service commitments; and argued the

company was ineligible for safety-valve funding under 47 C.F.R. § 54.305. See id. Missouri

Valley also made a formal request that, should the NDPSC find that its rural exemption was no

longer warranted, the NDPSC should suspend Missouri Valley's Section 251 obligations

pursuant to a separate section of the 1996 Act, Section 251(0(2). See Rural Exemption Order at

2; see also 47 U.S.C. § 251(0(2).

The NDPSC held hearings and received full briefing on the issues. See Rural Exemption

Order at 2. On October 8, 2008, the NDPSC denied Midcontinent's request for relief in the

Rural Exemption Order. See id. The Rural Exemption Order acknowledges that the proceeding

was conducted pursuant to federal law, and three of the seven issues designated for hearing

contained verbatim recitations of the Section 251(0(1)(A) standards, and other issues also

implicated federal law. See id. at 1, 2. The Rural Exemption Order mentioned, but did not

discuss or expressly consider or resolve, Midcontinent's claim that Missouri Valley had waived

any right to rely on the rural exemption. See id. at 1.

The NDPSC considered the federal statute and determined that Midcontinent's requested

interconnection would be unduly economically burdensome on Missouri Valley. See id. 111113-

33. The NDPSC rejected Midcontinent's statutory interpretation of the federal standard, holding

that the statute required evidence only that Missouri Valley's "efficiency in offering .. .

services" would be damaged and future facilities investment thereby impaired. See id. 30. The

NDPSC held that the unduly economically burdensome standard did not require it to consider

Missouri Valley's economic condition in light of its unique relationship with Nemont, but

10



Case 1:09-cv-00017-DLH-CSM Document 26 	 Filed 07/24/2009 Page 12 of 28

instead required only an examination of Missouri Valley's separate finances as Missouri Valley

reported them. See id. 31.

The NDPSC also concluded that lifting the rural exemption would be inconsistent with

the universal service policies set out in Section 254 of the 1996 Act, finding that the requested

interconnection would result in revenue losses that would impair Missouri Valley's ability to

meet potential future universal service requirements, which the NDPSC found sufficient under

Section 254. See id. 1539-40. Finally, the NDPSC concluded that Missouri Valley was ineligible

for safety valve funding under 47 C.F.R. § 54.305. See id. ¶ 40.

On November 4, 2008, Midcontinent filed a petition for reconsideration or rehearing,

arguing that the Rural Exemption Order misinterpreted federal law. The NDPSC rejected

Midcontinent's Petition on December 3, 2008 without a written order.

E.	 Midcontinent's Claims 

Midcontinent raises two separate claims for relief. First, it seeks declaratory relief that

the Rural Exemption Order violates federal law and is unenforceable; it also seeks an injunction

prohibiting the NDPSC from enforcing the Rural Exemption Order and Missouri Valley from

seeking its enforcement. Complaint IT 74-77, 80, 81-85, Prayer for Relief 111-4. This claim also

seeks injunctive relief requiring Missouri Valley to negotiate an interconnection agreement in

good faith under Sections 251 and 252 of the Communications Act. Complaint, Prayer for Relief

114.

Second, Midcontinent claims that Missouri Valley's attempt to enforce its rural

exemption through the NDPSC despite its waiver of any right to rely on that exemption

constitutes a violation of Section 251, which renders Missouri Valley liable for damages

pursuant to 47 U.S.C. §§ 206 and 207. Complaint in 68-71, 78-79, Prayer for Relief at 5.

11
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III. ARGUMENT 

A.	 The Court Has Subiect Matter Jurisdiction over Midcontinent's Claims. 

This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over Midcontinent's claims as a matter of

federal question jurisdiction. 4 The Court also has jurisdiction over the separate claims against

Missouri Valley for violations of 47 U.S.C. § 251, pursuant to 47 U.S.C. §§ 206, 207, and 251,

as well as 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331 and 1332.

1.	 Legal Standard. 

Midcontinent bears the burden of demonstrating that this Court has jurisdiction over its

claims. Jones v. Gale, 470 F.3d 1261, 1265 (8th Cir. 2006) (citing Hoekel v. Plumbing Planning

Corp., 20 F.3d 839, 840 (8th Cir. 1994) (per curiam). In making the jurisdictional determination,

the Court "accepts all of the factual allegations in [the] complaint as true," and may consider

facts outside the pleadings, if necessary, to resolve the issue. See Deuser v. Vecera, 139 F.3d

1190, 1191 (8th Cir. 1998). Moreover, the Complaint should "be construed broadly and

liberally, in conformity with the general principle set forth in Rule 8(f)." See Wright & Miller,

Federal Practice and Procedure § 1350 (3d ed. 2004); Kottschade v. City of Rochester, 2002 WL

91641 (D. Minn. Jan. 22, 2002), aff d, 319 F.3d 1038 (8th Cir. 2003).

4 	 See 28 U.S.C. § 1331. Defendants move to dismiss on both subject matter jurisdiction
and res judicata grounds under FRCP Rule 12(b)(6). When a Rule 12(b)(6) motion includes lack
of subject matter jurisdiction, that portion of the motion is properly construed as a Rule 12(b)(1)
motion, and subject matter jurisdiction should be resolved before the Court considers any other
asserted grounds for dismissal. See Wright & Miller, Federal Practice and Procedure § 1350 (3d
ed. 2004) (citing, inter alia, Steel Co. v. Citizens for a Better Environment,  523 U.S. 83 (1998);
Bell v. Hood, 327 U.S. 678 (1946); Walz v. U.S., 2002 WL 523880 at *2 n.3 (D Minn. March
22, 2002)). Accordingly, Midcontinent addresses the Defendants' subject matter jurisdiction
arguments first and its res judicata arguments thereafter.

12
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2.	 The Court Has Federal Question Jurisdiction To Review the
NDPSC's Decision.

The question of subject matter jurisdiction in this case is controlled by the Supreme

Court's decision in Verizon Maryland. In Verizon Maryland, the Supreme Court held that 28

U.S.C. § 1331 standing alone provides the district courts with subject matter jurisdiction over

challenges to state commission interpretations of the 1996 Act. Verizon argued that a Maryland

Public Service Commission ("MPSC") decision interpreting Section 251(b)(5) of the 1996 Act

conflicted with the text of the 1996 Act and FCC decisions interpreting it. Verizon sought a

declaratory judgment that the MPSC's order was unlawful and an injunction prohibiting its

enforcement.

Defendants argued that the district court lacked subject matter jurisdiction because the

1996 Act created a private right of action in federal district court only for cases challenging state

commission approvals or rejections of interconnection agreements under Section 252(e)(6). •

Verizon responded that Section 252(e)(6) authorized federal court claims for any

"determination" made by a state commission under Section 251 or 252 of the Act. Verizon also

argued that even if Section 252(e)(6) could not be so broadly construed, 28 U.S.C. § 1331

standing alone was sufficient to authorize suits to enforce the provisions of the 1996 Act because

nothing in that legislation suggested Congress intended to limit federal court jurisdiction over

claims arising under the 1996 Act.

The Supreme Court agreed with Verizon, holding that IN* have no doubt that federal

courts have jurisdiction to entertain [Verizon's] suit." See Verizon Maryland, 535 U.S. at 642.

The Court found that it did not even need to reach Verizon's argument that Section 252(e)(6)

authorizes suits challenging state commission actions other than interconnection agreement

decisions because federal question jurisdiction under Section 1331, by itself, was sufficient to

13
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support the Court's jurisdiction over claims arising under the 1996 Act. Id. at 642-43. The

Court also rejected the MPSC's claim that the 1996 Act did not create a private right of action.

Id. Instead, the Court explained, all that is required for 28 U.S.C. § 1331 to invest the federal

courts with jurisdiction over challenges to state commission interpretations is that "the right of

the petitioners . . . will be sustained if the Constitution and laws of the United States are given

one construction and will be defeated if they are given another." See id. at 643 (quoting Steel

Co. v. Citizens for Better Environment, 523 U.S. 83, 89 (1998)).

Following Verizon Maryland, the Eight Circuit stated this rule succinctly in RIIT,

holding that "district courts have jurisdiction to determine whether a state administrative agency

correctly interprets federal law, in this case the Telecommunications Act and the FCC

regulations interpreting the Act." 362 F.3d 1027 (8th Cir. 2004). And, in Iowa Network

Services, the Eighth Circuit confirmed its view that "[fjederal courts have the ultimate power to

interpret provisions of the 1996 Act," and that state agency determinations under the 1996 Act

are subject to challenge in federal court. 363 F.3d at 692, 693.

These three cases — Verizon Maryland, RIIT and Iowa Network Services — establish this

Court's jurisdiction over Midcontinent's complaint and foreclose Defendants' motions to dismiss

for lack of subject matter jurisdiction. Missouri Valley fails to cite any contrary authority. In

fact, no cases have been found that dismiss a request for federal court review of a state

commission's rural exemption determination pursuant to Section 251 (f) of the 1996 Act.

Although Missouri Valley cites Verizon Maryland and concedes that RIIT and Iowa Network:

Services "exemplify federal district courts' jurisdiction to review state commission's actions

under the 1996 Act, regarding inter-company compensation for interconnections," Missouri

Valley Memo. at 18, it fails to provide any reasoned basis on which to distinguish these cases:

14
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In fact, the only two courts that appear to have considered the question here determined

that they do have subject matter jurisdiction over such claims. See Consolidated

Communications of Fort Bend Co. v. Pub. Util. Corn. of Texas,  497 F.Supp.2d 836, 838

(W.D.Tex. 2007); Wireless World, L.L.C. v. Virgin Islands Pub. Serv. Corn., 2005 U.S. Dist.

LEXIS 15061 *6-7 (D.V.I. July 15, 2005). In each case, the court found subject matter

jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1331 and Section 252(e)(6) of the Communications Act,

which provides for federal court review of state commission "determinations" of issues arising

from the Section 252 arbitration process. 5

These courts' findings of jurisdiction over Section 251(f) rural exemption determinations

based on Section 252(e)(6), reflect that when a state commission declines to lift a rural

exemption, the CLEC has no way to force a rural ILEC to negotiate an interconnection

agreement and no ability to force arbitration from the state commission. Thus, rural exemption

determinations are properly seen as "determinations" under Section 252, within the meaning of .

Section 252(e)(6). The jurisdictional analysis in Consolidated Communications  and Wireless

World therefore establishes Section 252(e)(6) as a separate and independent basis for subject

matter jurisdiction over Midcontinent's claims, even though the Supreme Court in Verizon

Maryland held that 28 U.S.C. § 1331 alone is sufficient to support jurisdiction.

Defendants nonetheless argue that the Court has no jurisdiction over Midcontinent's

complaint because it fails to allege any conflict between the NDPSC's decision and federal law.

Missouri Valley Memo. at 19; NDPSC Memo. at 9. This is incorrect. The Complaint identifies

numerous instances where the Rural Exemption Order  violates federal law and, in fact, relies on

5 	 Significantly, both RIIT and Iowa Network Services involved challenges to agency action
that did not arise from interconnection arbitrations, and thus could be considered to fall outside
the bounds of district court actions specifically authorized by Section 252(e)(6).

15



Case 1:09-cv-00017-DLH-CSM Document 26 	 Filed 07/24/2009 Page 17 of 28

such determinations under federal law to justify relief. The Complaint directly poses several

questions of federal law, including: (1) whether Section 2510)(1)(A) permitted the NDPSC to

leave Missouri Valley's rural exemption in place despite Missouri Valley's previous waivers of

that exemption; (2) whether the NDPSC properly applied the "unduly economically

burdensome" determination under federal law; (3) whether the NDPSC properly analyzed

whether lifting the rural exemption would negatively impact universal service under Section 254;

and (4) whether the NDPSC correctly determined that "safety valve" financing would be

unavailable to Missouri Valley under 47 C.F.R. § 54.305. The rights of Midcontinent "will be

sustained" if these federal laws "are given one construction and will be defeated if they are given

another." Verizon Maryland, 535 U.S. at 643. Each of the alleged conflicts between the Rural

Exemption Order, on one hand, and the 1996 Act and the FCC rules, on the other, raises

substantial questions of federal law that this Court has jurisdiction to resolve under 28 U.S.C.

§ 1331. 6

Defendants' other arguments against federal question jurisdiction already have been .

rejected, either by Verizon Maryland itself or by other cases cited by Defendants. Defendants

first argue that Section 251 does not confer a private right of action. Missouri Valley Memo.. at

15-16; NDPSC Memo. at 8. The Supreme Court expressly rejected this argument, holding that

to invoke federal court review of state commission action under the 1996 Act, identifying a

6 	 Missouri Valley argues that because the NDPSC may have expressed some of its
conclusions in the Rural Exemption Order  as factual determinations (e.g. "Midcontinent failed to
prove that the request . . . is not unduly economically burdensome"), those determinations are
unreviewable. Missouri Valley Memo. at 19. This is wrong. Courts in this Circuit routinely
review state commission factual determinations and mixed questions of fact and law in 1996 Act
proceedings. WWC License, L.L.C. v. Boyle, 459 F.3d 880, 889-90 (8th Cir. 2006). And, to the
extent the Court finds the NDPSC applied the wrong legal standards under Section 251(0, that is
ann error of law, not of fact.
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separate private right of action is unnecessary. Verizon Maryland. 535 U.S. at 642-43. The

district court's subject matter jurisdiction is established if a plaintiff alleges that state

commission action is in conflict with federal law, which must prevail under the Supremacy

Clause. Id.

Missouri Valley's private right of action argument appears to spring from the premise

that the Complaint asks this Court to relitigate the request for termination of Missouri Valley's

rural exemption as an original matter under Section 251(f). Missouri Valley Memo. at 16, 21.

That premise is unsound. Midcontinent seeks legal review of the Rural Exemption Order, not a

new trial of the facts in this matter. The administrative record developed before the NDPSC is

the factual record in this case, and it provides ample basis to evaluate Midcontinent's claims and

grant the requested relief. No discovery or additional factual submissions will be required (or

would be appropriate); just as in Verizon Maryland, the Court need only review whether the

Rural Exemption Order is consistent with federal law.

Defendants also argue that federal question jurisdiction does not exist over claims arising

under Section 251 because it does not explicitly confer jurisdiction on the federal courts.

Missouri Valley Memo at 20; NDPSC Memo. at 8. That analysis is precisely backwards. As the

Supreme Court explained, 28 U.S.C. § 1331 is a general grant of federal court jurisdiction, which

applies unless a particular federal statute demonstrates congressional intent to strip the federal

courts of jurisdiction. Verizon Maryland, 535 U.S. 642-44. There is nothing in Section 251(f) to

suggest that Congress intended to eliminate federal court review of state commission decisions

under Section 251(f).

Missouri Valley's only attempt to demonstrate that Congress might have had such an ,

intention is its argument that Section 251(f) represents a "comprehensive system of enforcement"
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that "negates a private right of action in federal district court." Missouri Valley Memo. at 16.

Missouri Valley claims further that the judicial review procedures established by Section

252(e)(6) implicitly limit federal court jurisdiction over other claims arising under the 1996 Act

because if Congress had intended to authorize federal court review of other claims, it would have

done so expressly. Missouri Valley Memo at 16-17, 20-21. But the Supreme Court's decision in

Verizon Maryland rejected both of these arguments as well, holding that the adjudicatory

procedures established in the 1996 Act do not demonstrate congressional intent to foreclose

federal court review of other state commission decisions because in the 1996 Act, "where

otherwise applicable jurisdiction was meant to be excluded, it was excluded expressly." Verizon

Maryland, 535 U.S. at 644 (citing 47 U.S.C. 252(e)(4), which strips state courts of jurisdiction

over interconnection agreements). Indeed, the Supreme Court held that "none of the . . 

provisions of the [1996] Act evince any intent to preclude federal review of a [state] commission

determination." See id.

Defendants seek to distinguish Verizon Maryland by claiming that case applies only to

issues that arise under Section 252 of the 1996 Act, not Section 251. Missouri Valley Memo. at

16; NDPSC Memo. at 9. To the contrary, the issue in Verizon Maryland arose from the

Maryland Commission's construction of the reciprocal compensation provisions found in Section

251(b)(5) of the 1996 Act, not from any right contained in Section 252. Verizon Maryland, 535

U.S. at 638, 642. Likewise, the issue under review in the Eighth Circuit in RIIT involved the

jurisdictional classification of telecommunications traffic to determine whether the reciprocal

compensation requirement in Section 251(b)(5) applied to certain wireless telephone traffic. See

RIIT, 476 F.3d at 573-75. Similarly, the Eighth Circuit in Iowa Network Services reviewed a

state agency determination regarding the proper application of the Section 251(b)(5) reciprocal
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compensation requirement. 363 F.3d at 693. In fact, in both RIIT and Iowa Network Services,

there was no interconnection agreement between the parties at all. Nothing in the language,

facts, or reasoning of any of these cases suggests that federal question jurisdiction to review state

commission actions is limited to claims arising under Section 252 of the 1996 Act.

Defendants also argue that the Supreme Court derived its subject matter jurisdiction in

Verizon Maryland from Section 252(e)(6). Missouri Valley Memo. at 17-18; NDPSC Memo. at

9. This, too, is wrong. Indeed, the Supreme Court explicitly held that it did not need to

determine whether Section 252(e)(6) provided jurisdiction over the Section 251(b)(5) claims

raised in that case because it was entirely clear that 28 U.S.C. § 1331 provided jurisdiction.

Verizon Maryland, 535 U.S. 641-42 ("Whether the text of Section 252(e)96) can be so construed

[to provide jurisdiction] is a question we need not decide."). Nonetheless, both Consolidated

Communications and Wireless World hold that Section 252(e)(6) does confer jurisdiction over

Section 251(1) rural exemption cases.

Defendants' attempt to distinguish this case from Verizon Maryland by alleging that this

case does not raise a "substantial issue of federal preemption of state law" entirely misses the

mark. Missouri Valley Memo. at 18; NDPSC Memo. at 9. Verizon Maryland found a conflict

between state and federal law because the MPSC (a state actor) misinterpreted Section 251(b)(5)

of the 1996 Act. The Courts in Verizon Maryland, RITT, and Iowa Network Services

recognized that because federal law now governs local telephone markets, any state commission

decision that conflicts with the 1996 Act or the interpretive FCC rules creates a federal question

that is appropriate for resolution in the federal courts. Verizon Maryland, 535 U.S. at 643-44;

RITT, 362 F.3d at 1030; Iowa Network Services, 363 F.3d at 692-93.
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Finally, Missouri Valley claims that Midcontinent's claims are "wholly insubstantial and

frivolous" and thus barred by Verizon Maryland. Missouri Valley Brief at 21. This argument

should be rejected out of hand. Midcontinent has raised substantial issues of federal law, as

shown above. These allegations easily satisfy the federal pleading standard and will form the

basis for relief in this case.

3.	 The Court Has Subject Matter Jurisdiction over Midcontinent's
Claims Against Missouri Valley.

This Court also has subject matter jurisdiction over Midcontinent's direct claims against

Missouri Valley for violation of Sections 251 and 252. Section 206 of the Communications Act

of 1934, as amended, 47 U.S.C. § 151, et. seq., (the "Communications Act"), provides that

common carriers are liable for damages for any act prohibited by the Communications Act. 47

U.S.C. §206. Section 207 allows a party damaged by such violations to bring suit in federal

district court. 47 U.S.C. § 207.

Midcontinent claims that Missouri Valley violated Sections 251 and 252 by refusing to

provide Midcontinent with facilities-based interconnection pursuant to Section 251 and by

relying on a rural exemption that Missouri Valley had knowingly waived. The facts

Midcontinent alleges are assumed true for this motion, but even Missouri Valley does not dispute

that it has refused interconnection, relying on the rural exemption. Thus, Sections 206 and 207

place the adjudication of Midcontinent's claims squarely within the jurisdictional authority of -

this Court. These statutes, coupled with the Court's federal question jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C.

§ 1331, firmly establish this Court's subject matter jurisdiction to adjudicate Midcontinent's

direct claims against Missouri Valley.

And while Missouri Valley argues that "Congress intended the interconnection and

exemption provisions of §§ 251(c) and 251(f) of the act to be administered by State commissions
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not by private actions in federal courts," see Missouri Valley Memo. at 14, it cites no cases,

legislative history or any other source demonstrating that Congress intended to exempt violations

of Section 251 or 252 from the federal courts' jurisdiction under Sections 206 and 207. In any

case, Missouri Valley's argument is foreclosed by the Supreme Court's ruling that the district

court retains its jurisdiction under the Communications Act absent a specific provision of the

1996 Act that divests it of jurisdiction. See Verizon Maryland, 535 U.S. at 644 ("[W]here

otherwise applicable jurisdiction was meant to be excluded, it was excluded expressly.").

Finally, in addition to federal question jurisdiction, this Court has diversity jurisdiction

over Midcontinent's claims against Missouri Valley. See 28 U.S.C. 1332. There is no dispute

that Midcontinent is a South Dakota partnership and that its partners reside outside of North

Dakota, headquartered in South Dakota, whereas Missouri Valley is a North Dakota Corporation,

headquartered in North Dakota. ? There also can be no dispute that the amount in controversy

exceeds $75,000, with competitive telephone service to the entire Williston exchange at stake.

See Rural Exemption Order 32 (accepting Missouri Valley's allegation that it would lose $3.58

million in revenues if required to permit the requested interconnection); see also Complaint T118,

12-13. Therefore, even if the Complaint were somehow construed as alleging only state law

claims against Missouri Valley, this Court would have diversity jurisdiction over those claims,

Missouri Valley does not directly contest diversity jurisdiction. It merely states that

diversity jurisdiction would be "duplicative" of the federal question jurisdiction argument.

Missouri Valley Memo. at 14. This is illogical. The fact that there are two bases for federal

jurisdiction does not undermine the validity of either one.

7 	 See Declaration of Jason E. Rademacher,  1111 4-7, submitted as Attachment 1.
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B.	 Midcontinent's Claims Are Not Barred by the Doctrine of Res Judicata.

1. Legal Standard

Defendants' Rule 12(b)(6) motions to dismiss on res judicata grounds rely on matters

outside the pleadings and are properly treated as motions for summary judgment pursuant to

Rule 56. Fed. R. Civ. P. 12(d). Summary judgment is appropriate only if the evidence, viewed

in the light most favorable to the nonmoving party, shows that there is no genuine issue of

material fact and that the moving party is entitled to judgment as a matter of law. See Lynn v. 

Deaconess Med. Ctr.-West Campus, 160 F.3d 484, 486 (8th Cir. 1998). In this case, the facts

relevant to Defendants' res judicata defense are not in dispute. The law, however, clearly

requires denial of the motions because the Eighth Circuit has confirmed that res judicata does not

bar federal court review of state commission actions under the local competition provisions of

the Communications Act. Iowa Network Services, 363 F.3d at 690 ("Congress intended to

supplant the common law principles of claim preclusion when it enacted the 1996 Act.").

2. Res Judicata Does Not Shield the NDPSC from Midcontinent's 
Claims that the Rural Exemption Order Violates Federal Law. 

It should be clear that Midcontinent is not seeking to re-litigate or re-try the facts of this

case; it seeks judicial review of the state agency decision as inconsistent with federal law.

Accordingly, the doctrine of res judicata, or claim preclusion, has no application here. That

alone, is sufficient to reject the defense. Nevertheless, Defendants submit pages of argument

seeking to show that res judicata bars Midcontinent's request for review of the Rural Exemption

Order. Missouri Valley Memo. at 8-13; NDPSC Memo. at 4-7. Fundamental to Defendants'

motion is the presumption that common law principles of res judicata could apply to limit federal

court review of state commission determinations under the 1996 Act. This is wrong as a matter

of law.
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Under Supreme Court and Eight Circuit precedent, when state agencies like the NDPSC

apply federal law like 47 U.S.C. 251(f), their decisions lack preclusive effect if Congress

intended to provide parties with recourse to the federal courts. Iowa Network Services, 363 F.3d

at 690 (citing Univ. of Tenn. v. Elliott, 478 U.S. 788, 794-95 (1986); Astoria Fed. Say. & Loan 

Ass'n v. Solimino, 501 U.S. 104, 108, 111 (1991) ("Astoria")). In Iowa Network Services, the

court noted that 'common law doctrines [of res judicata and issue preclusion] . . . are trumped

by the Supremacy Clause if the effect of the state court judgment or decree [or administrative

ruling] is to restrain the exercise of the United States' sovereign power by imposing requirements

that are contrary to important and established federal policy.'" See 363 F.3d at 690 (quoting ,

Arapahoe County Pub. Airport Auth. v. FAA, 242 F.3d 1213, 1219 (10th Cir. 2001)).

Under this standard, as Defendants concede, the only relevant question is whether

Congress intended state commission actions to be subject to federal court review. Missouri

Valley Memo. at 12-13 (citing Astoria, 501 U.S. at 107-08); NDPSC Memo. at 7. Defendants

argue that there is no evidence of congressional intent to permit federal court review of the Rural

Exemption Order. That argument ignores the Eighth Circuit's decision in Iowa Network

Services. In that case, the Court specifically addressed the applicability of the res judicata

defense to challenges to state commission interpretations of the 1996 Act and determined that

"Congress intended to supplant the common law principles of claim preclusion when it enacted

the 1996 Act." 363 F.3d at 690.

Midcontinent's claims are indistinguishable from those at issue in Iowa Network

Services, and the Eighth Circuit's determination on that point controls the outcome here, In that

case, the district court was asked to review the Iowa Utilities Board's (the "IUB") disposition .of

a dispute between Qwest and Iowa Network Services over payment of access charges that had
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required the Board to construe Section 251(b)(5) of the Act. Id. at 687-88. Qwest asked the

court to review the IUB's decision to determine whether its interpretation of Section 251(b)(5) —

and the IUB's decision that depended on it — complied with federal law. The court held that res

judicata could not bar federal court review because the IUB's decision "was indisputably

interpreting federal law," and applying res judicata to bar federal court review would frustrate

Congress's intent that federal courts have final say over interpretations of the 1996 Act. Id. a •

693, 692-93. Although Missouri Valley cites Iowa Network Services, it fails to discuss or

distinguish this key holding.

Indeed, rather than seek to distinguish Iowa Network Services,  Defendants inexplicably

rely on arguments that the Eighth Circuit plainly rejected in that case. Defendants argue that

Astoria, 501 U.S. at 107-108, requires dismissal of Midcontinent's claims on res judicata

grounds because Congress did not intend the 1996 Act to interfere with the application of that

doctrine. Missouri Valley Memo. at 12-13; NDPSC Memo. at 7. But the Eighth Circuit held

precisely the opposite, holding that Congress did intend to empower federal courts to review

state commission interpretations of the 1996 Act and that "the Astoria rule prevents application

of res judicata" to such requests. See Iowa Network Services, 363 F.3d at 690 (emphasis added).

Defendants argue that the only issues the Court will need to resolve in this case concern

the NDPSC's application of "the elements of the rural exemption and whether the rural

exemption was previously waived by Missouri Valley." Missouri Valley Memo. at 9; also

NDPSC Memo. at 7-8. Defendants fail to recognize, however, that the substantive claims in this

case are that the NDPSC answered those questions incorrectly because it improperly interpreted

the local competition provisions of the 1996 Act. This raises questions that the Court in Iowa
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Network Services made clear the federal courts should answer without regard to prior state

commission determinations.

Defendants also argue that Midcontinent is "forum shopping" and does not like the result

reached by the NDPSC, and that res judicata applies because the 1996 Act mandates that a

determination as to whether an ILEC's rural exemption "shall be terminated is to be made by

state commissions alone." Missouri Valley Memo. at 11; NDPSC Memo. at 6, 7. It is true that

Midcontinent does not "like" the NDPSC's decision; it is contrary to federal law and hinders fair

competition for telephone services in the Williston exchange. That is why Midcontinent is -

challenging the decision here. However, seeking federal court review of a state agency decision

interpreting federal law is not forum shopping any more than seeking appellate review of a trial

court decision would be. Again, Midcontinent does not contest the NDPSC's original

jurisdiction over its Section 251(f) claims, and it is not requesting a new hearing on the facts in a

new forum. 8 It merely seeks federal court review of matters of federal law.

The doctrine of res judicata simply has no application here. 9

8	 Missouri Valley also implies that perhaps application of res judicata depends upon
whether the NDPSC's "rank or status is sufficient or high enough that its determination must
be regarded as a res judicata bar in federal court." Missouri Valley Memo. at 11. This makes no
sense. The NDPSC's jurisdiction to address the congressionally-established rural exemption was
created by Congress, which also rendered state agency determinations of federal law subject to
federal court review. Iowa Network Services,  363 F.3d 690-92. Review of the Rural Exemption
Order is part of the process established by federal law and does not impugn the status or
authority of the NDPSC.
9	 Defendants do not argue that the res judicata defense bars Midcontinent's Section 251
claims against Missouri Valley, and therefore Midcontinent does not address it substantively
here. In any event, Defendants would have the burden of proving such a defense, see Bryson v.
Guarantee Reserve Life Ins. Co., 520 F.2d 563 (1975) (citations omitted), so their failure to
include it in their motion precludes summary judgment on the issue at this time.
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IV. CONCLUSION

For the reasons stated above, Defendants respectfully request that Defendants' motions to

dismiss be denied.

Respectfully submitted,

MIDCONTINENT COMMUNICATIONS

By:	 /s/ John M. Olson

John M. Olson ID# 03053
John M. Olson, PC
418 East Broadway, Suite 9
Bismarck, North Dakota 58501

David E. Mills
J.G. Harrington
Dow Lohnes, PLLC
1200 New Hampshire Ave., NW
Suite 800
Washington, DC 20036

Its Attorneys

July 24, 2009
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF NORTH DAKOTA 

MIDCONTINENT COMMUNICATIONS, 	 )
A SOUTH DAKOTA PARTNERSHIP, 	 )

)
Plaintiff, 	 )

v. 	 )
) CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC SERVICE 	 )
COMMISSION, KEVIN CRAMER, 	 )
TONY CLARK, AND BRIAN KALK, 	 )
in their official capacities as Commissioners 	 )
of the North Dakota Public Service Commission )

)
and 	 )

)
MISSOURI VALLEY COMMUNICATIONS 	 )
INC., 	 )

)
Defendants. 	 )

	 )

Case No.: 1:09-cv-017

I hereby certify that on July 24, 2009, the following documents:

CONSOLIDATED OPPOSITION TO MOTION TO DISMISS

And

DECLARATION OF JASON E. RADEMACHER

Were filed electronically with the Clerk of Court through ECF, and that ECF will send a Notice
of Electronic Filing (NEF) to the following:

David J. Hogue (dhogue@srt.com)
Annette Marie Bendish (abendish@nd.gov)

I further certify that a copy of the foregoing documents will be mailed by first class mail,
postage paid, to the following non-ECF participants:

(NONE)

/s/ Tara B. Brandner
Tara B. Brandner
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF NORTH DAKOTA 

MIDCONTINENT COMMUNICATIONS, 	 )
A SOUTH DAKOTA PARTNERSHIP, 	 )

) 
Plaintiff,	 )

v.	 )
)

NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC SERVICE 	 )
COMMISSION, KEVIN CRAMER, 	 )
TONY CLARK, AND BRIAN KALK,	 )
in their official capacities as Commissioners	 )
of the North Dakota Public Service Commission )

Case No.: 1:09-cv-017 

) 

and	 )
)

MISSOURI VALLEY COMMUNICATIONS 	 )
INC.,	 )

)
Defendants.	 )

	 ) 

DECLARATION OF JASON E. RADEMACHER

I, Jason E. Rademacher, declare as follows:

1. I am an attorney employed by the law firm of Dow Lohnes PLLC ("Dow

Lohnes"), located at 1200 New Hampshire Ave., NW, Suite 800, Washington, DC

20036, counsel for Plaintiff Midcontinent Communications ("Midcontinent") in the

above-captioned action.

2. This declaration is submitted in support of the Opposition to Motions to

Dismiss of the North Dakota Public Service Commission (the "NDPSC") and Missouri

Valley Communications, Inc. ("Missouri Valley").

3.	 In my capacity as an attorney for Midcontinent, I am familiar with its

federal regulatory filings as required under the federal Communications Act of 1934, as

amended, 47 U.S.C. §§ 151 et seq., and the rules of the Federal Communications
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Commission ("FCC"). As an FCC licensee regulated by 47 U.S.C. § 214, Midcontinent

is periodically required to provide the FCC with information regarding the citizenship of

its corporate and individual owners.

4. Exhibit 1 is a true and correct copy of a recent application filed on

Midcontinent's behalf that details the company's corporate structure. As described

therein, Midcontinent is a South Dakota general partnership. Midcontinent

Communications Investor LLC ("MCI") is a South Dakota limited liability company that

owns 50% of Midcontinent and is the company's managing general partner. MCI is

wholly owned by Midcontinent Media, Inc. a Minnesota corporation. TCI Midcontinent,

LLC ("TCI") also owns 50% of Midcontinent and is organized under the laws of

Delaware. TCI is wholly owned by Comcast Corporation, a public company organized

under the laws of Pennsylvania.

5. As counsel for Midcontinent, I am aware that Midcontinent is

headquartered in Sioux Falls, South Dakota, where it maintains its principal place of

business. From this headquarters, Midcontinent conducts business as a cable operator,

telephone services provider, and high speed Internet service provider in parts of South

Dakota, North Dakota, and Minnesota.

6. Exhibit 2 is a true and correct copy of a description of Midcontinent's

business activities that Midcontinent makes available to the public detailing its primary

business location and its lines of business.

7. Exhibit 3 is a publicly available report generated by the internet web site

for the North Dakota Secretary of State demonstrating that Missouri Valley is a North

Dakota corporation in good standing with its principal office in Scobey, Montana.  
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I declare under penalty of perjury of the laws of the United States that the

foregoing is true and correct.

Executed on July 24, 2009.  
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US BANK/FCC MAY 12 2009 	 STAMP & RETURN
Before the

FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20554

In the Matter of 	 )
)

N.L. Bentson 	 )
)

Transferor,	 )
and 	 )

)
The Estate of N.L. Bentson, 	 )

)
Transferee.	 )

)
Joint Application for Consent to Transfer 	 )
International and Domestic Authority Pursuant to 	 )
Section 214 of the Communications Act of 1934, 	 )
as amended 	 )

)

File No.   

JOINT APPLICATION FOR CONSENT TO TRANSFER INTERNATIONAL AND
DOMESTIC AUTHORITY PURSUANT TO SECTION 214

OF THE COMMUNICATIONS ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED 

Pursuant to Section 214 of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended (the

"Communications Act"), 47 U.S.C. § 214, and Sections 63.03, 63.04 and 63.24 of the

Commission's Rules, 47 C.F.R. §§ 63.03, 63.04 and 63.24, N.L. Bentson and the Estate of

N.L. Bentson (the "Estate," and together with Mr. Bentson the "Applicants") hereby request

consent to the involuntary transfer of control of Midcontinent Communications

("Midcontinent") from Mr. Bentson to the Estate. Midcontinent is a non-dominant carrier

authorized by the Commission to provide international and domestic telecommunications

services. The Applicants seek streamlined processing of this Joint Application pursuant to

Sections 63.03(b)(2) and 63.24(g) of the Commission's Rules. This Joint Application is

being filed simultaneously with the International Bureau and the Wireline Competition

Bureau. I EXHIBIT

1 2 
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In support of this Joint Application, the Applicants respectfully submit the following

information:

Background

N.L. Bentson owned 95.81% of Midcontinent Media, Inc., a privately-held company

organized under the laws of the state of Minnesota. Midcontinent Media, Inc. owns 100% of

Midcontinent Communications Investor, LLC, which in turn owns 50% of Midcontinent and

is the managing general partner of Midcontinent. Mr. Bentson passed away on April 12,

2009. On that date, Mr. Bentson's indirect interest in Midcontinent was transferred to his

estate. Midcontinent will continue to operate in its existing service territory.

Midcontinent is the largest cable provider in the Dakotas. Midcontinent offers cable

service, high speed Internet and telephone service across North Dakota and South Dakota,

and also serves some customers in western and northern Minnesota. Midcontinent has been

offering long distance telephone service since 1982 and local telephone service since 1999.

Midcontinent obtained Section 214 international authorization in 2001. 1

Midcontinent's telephone service is a direct replacement for incumbent telephone

company offerings, including local and long distance services; features like call waiting and

call forwarding; and voice mail. Midcontinent's telephone service is offered via its own

facilities, and it is certificated as a local exchange carrier in Minnesota, North Dakota and

South Dakota. Midcontinent serves more than 80,000 telephone customers and more than

250,000 customers for all of its services combined.

This Joint Application is entitled to streamlined treatment pursuant to Section

63.03(b)(2)(i) of the Commission's Rules because the proposed transaction described herein

would result in all Midcontinent affiliates and subsidiaries having a market share in the

I See Public Notice, DA No. 01-1604 (Jun. 29, 2001), granting File No. ITC-214-20010606-00327.
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interstate, interexchange market of less than ten percent (10%) and because Midcontinent is

not dominant with respect to any service.

Description of the Transaction

The transaction between Mr. Bentson and his Estate involves the transfer of Mr.

Bentson's indirect interest in Midcontinent to his Estate by operation upon his death.

Qualification for Streamlined Processing

Midcontinent affirms that (a) the proposed transaction will result in Midcontinent

having a market share in the interstate, interexchange marketplace of less than 10 percent; (b)

following the proposed transaction Midcontinent will provide competitive telephone

exchange service and exchange access services exclusively in geographic areas served by a

dominant local exchange carrier that is not a party to the transaction; and (c) neither of the

applicants is dominant with respect to any service. Consequently, this transaction qualifies

for streamlined processing under Section 63.03(b)(2)(i) of the Commission's Rules.

Transfer of International Section 214 Authorization

In accordance with the requirements of Section 63.24(e) of the Commission's Rules,

Applicants submit the following information:

(1) Name, address and telephone number of each Applicant:

Transferor: 

N.L. Bentson 2

3600 Minnesota Drive, Suite 700
Minneapolis, MN 55435

Transferee:

The Estate of N.L. Bentson
George Reilly, Personal Representative
do Leonard, Street and Deinard

2 In prior applications, Mr. Bentson was referred to as Larry Bentson.
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150 South Fifth Street
Suite 2300
Minneapolis, MN 55402
Tel: (612) 335-1614

(2) Government, state or territory under the laws of which each corporate or
partnership Applicant is organized

Not applicable

(3) Name, title, post office address, and telephone number of the officer or contact
point of each Applicant to whom correspondence concerning the Joint Application is to
be addressed:

For Mr. Bentson and the Estate:

J.G. Harrington
Dow Lohnes P.L.L.C.
1200 New Hampshire Avenue, NW
Suite 800
Washington, DC 20036
Tel. (202) 776-2818
Fax (202) 776-2222

(4) Statement as to whether the Applicants have previously received authority under
Section 214 of the Act.

Mr. Bentson, the transferor, indirectly controlled more than ten percent (10%) of the:equity
of Midcontinent. Midcontinent holds an international resale authority pursuant to File No.
ITC-214-20010606-00327. Midcontinent also holds authority pursuant to File No. ITC-
ASG-20081217-00538.

(5) Name, address, citizenship and principal business of any person or entity that
directly or indirectly owns at least ten percent of the equity of the Transferee:

The following entities own ten percent (10%) or more of the equity of Midcontinent via
general partnership interests:

Percentage Principal
Name and Address Ownership Citizenship Business

Midcontinent Communications Investor, LLC 50% US investments
3600 Minnesota Drive, Suite 700
Minneapolis, MN 55435

TCI-Midcontinent, LLC 50% US investments
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1500 Market Street
Philadelphia, PA 19121

The transferor, Mr. Bentson, was a US citizen. Mr. Bentson owned 95.81% of the equity of
Midcontinent Media, Inc., a privately-held company organized under the laws of the state of
Minnesota. Midcontinent Media, Inc. owns 100% of Midcontinent Communications
Investor, LLC. Midcontinent Media, Inc. and Midcontinent Communications Investor, LLC
have the same address.

The transferee is Mr. Bentson's estate. Mr. George Reilly is the Personal Representative of
the Estate of N.L. Bentson. 3 Mr. Reilly is a U.S. citizen.

TCI-Midcontinent, LLC is wholly owned by Comcast Corporation, a public company
organized under the laws of the state of Pennsylvania, which has the same address as TCI-
Midcontinent, LLC. No individual or entity holds 10 percent or more of the equity of
Comcast Corporation.

The following entities, all of which are non-dominant, are affiliated with TCI-Midcontinent,
LLC and provide or are authorized to provide interstate telecommunications services:

Entity State of
Organization

Services Provided Affiliation

Comcast Business
Communications,
LLC dba Comcast
Long Distance

Pennsylvania Telephony Wholly-owned
subsidiary of Comcast
Corporation

Comcast WCS
ME02, Inc.

Delaware Wireless
Communications
Services

Wholly-owned
subsidiary of Comcast
Corporation

Comcast WCS
ME4, Inc.

Delaware Wireless
Communications
Services

Wholly-owned
subsidiary of Comcast
Corporation

Comcast WCS
ME5, Inc.

Delaware Wireless
Communications
Services

Wholly-owned
subsidiary of Comcast
Corporation

Comcast WCS
ME16, Inc.

Delaware Wireless
Communications
Services

Wholly-owned
subsidiary of Comcast
Corporation

Comcast WCS
ME22, Inc.

Delaware Wireless
Communications
Services

Wholly-owned
subsidiary of Comcast
Corporation

Comcast WCS
ME26, Inc.

Delaware Wireless
Communications

Wholly-owned
subsidiary of Comcast

3 Mr. Reilly is named as the Personal Representative in the Decedent's will. The Court appointment is in
process. Mr. Reilly is acting pursuant to Section 524.3-701 of the Minnesota Probate Code.
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Entity State of
Organization

Services Provided Affiliation

Services Corporation
Comcast WCS
ME28, Inc.

Delaware Wireless
Communications
Services

Wholly-owned
subsidiary of Comcast
Corporation

Comcast WCS
ME22, Inc.

Delaware Wireless
Communications
Services

Wholly-owned
subsidiary of Comcast
Corporation
54.28% owned by
Comcast Corporation

SpectrumCo, LLC Delaware Wireless
Communications
Services

(6) Certification as to whether or not Transferee is, or is affiliated with, a foreign
carrier:

The Estate certifies that neither it nor any affiliate or successor is or will be a foreign carrier,
and that neither it nor any affiliate or successor is or will be affiliated with any foreign
carrier.

(7) Certification as to whether or not Transferee seeks to provide international
telecommunications services to any country for which certain conditions are true:

The Estate certifies that neither it nor any affiliate or successor will provide international
telecommunications to any destination country for which Midcontinent or an affiliate or •
successor (1) is a foreign carrier in that country; (2) controls a foreign carrier in that country;
or (3) is owned more than 25% by or controlled by an entity that controls a foreign carrier in
that country.

(8) Showing regarding provision of international telecommunications service to a
country where the Transferee is a foreign carrier or is affiliated with a foreign carrier.

Not applicable.

(9) Regulatory classification under Section 63.10 of the Rules for foreign-affiliated
carrier.

Not applicable.

(10) Certification that Transferee has not agreed to accept special concessions directly
or indirectly from any foreign carrier.

The Estate certifies that it has not agreed to accept special concessions directly or indirectly.
from any foreign carrier with respect to any US international route where the foreign carrier
possesses market power on the foreign end of the route and will not enter into such
agreements in the future.

6
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(11) Certification by Transferee pursuant to 47 C.F.R. §§ 1.2001-1.2003 that no party
to the Joint Application is subject to denial of federal benefits pursuant to Section 5301
of the Anti-Drug Abuse Act of 1988, 21 U.S.C. § 583

The Estate hereby certifies, pursuant to 47 C.F.R. §§ 1.2001-1.2003, that to the best of its
knowledge, information, and belief, no party to this Joint Application is subject to denial of
federal benefits pursuant to Section 5301 of the Anti-Drug Abuse Act of 1988, 21 U.S.C. §
583.

(12) Qualification for streamlined processing.

This Joint Application qualifies for streamlined processing under Sections 63.12(a) and (b) of
the Commission's rules. No Applicant is affiliated with any foreign carrier in any destination
market. No Applicant has an affiliation with a dominant US carrier. No Applicant seeks
authority to provide switched basic services over private lines to a country for which the
Commission has not previously authorized the provision of switched services over private
lines. Authorization is sought for the transfer of an indirect interest from a deceased
individual to his estate.

7
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Transfer of Domestic Section 214 Authorizations 

Pursuant to Section 63.04(b) of the Commission's Rules, the Applicants supply the

following information required pursuant to Sections 63.04(a)(6) through 63.04(a)(12) of the

Commission's Rules:

(1) Description of the transaction

The transaction involves the involuntary transfer of an indirect ownership interest in
Midcontinent from Mr. Bentson, who is deceased, to his estate. Service will not be affected
by the proposed transaction.

(2)Description of the geographic areas in which the Transferor and Transferee (and
their affiliates) offer domestic telecommunications services, and what services are
provided in each area

The transferor controlled over 10% of the equity of Midcontinent. Transferee is the
transferor's estate.

Midcontinent offers local exchange, exchange access and interstate interexchange telephone
service in North Dakota, South Dakota and portions of western Minnesota. Local exchange
and exchange access services are offered via Midcontinent's own facilities and interexchange
telephone services are offered via Midcontinent's own facilities or resale. Midcontinent is
certificated as a local exchange carrier in Minnesota, North Dakota and South Dakota.
Midcontinent serves more than 80,000 telephone customers.

(3) Statement as to how the Joint Application fits into one or more of the presumptive
streamlined categories in Section 63.03 of the Commission's Rules or why it is otherwise
appropriate for streamlined treatment:

The Joint Application is entitled to streamlined processing under Section 63.03(b)(2)(i) of the
Commission's Rules because (a) the proposed transfer would result in Midcontinent, its
subsidiaries and affiliates having a market share in the interstate, interexchange market of
less than ten percent (10%); and (b) neither Applicant is dominant with respect to any
service.

The proposed transaction will have no adverse effect on competition. Grant of streamlined
treatment for this Application is consistent with Commission precedent.

(4) Identification of all other Commission applications related to the same transaction

This transaction also resulted in the transfer of control of certain authorizations in the Cable
Antenna Relay Service, the Private Land Mobile service, the Common Carrier Microwave

8
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service, and the Receive-Only Earth Station service. Transfer of control applications are
being filed for those authorizations concurrently with this application.

(5) Statement of whether the Applicants are requesting special consideration because
either party to the transaction is facing imminent business failure

Neither Applicant is facing imminent business failure. Therefore, the Applicants are not
requesting special consideration for this reason.

(6) Identification of any separately filed waiver requests being sought in conjunction
with the transaction

No separately filed waiver requests are being sought in conjunction with the transaction.

(7) Statement showing how grant of the Joint Application will serve the public interest,
convenience and necessity, including any additional information that may be necessary
to show the effect of the proposed transaction on competition in domestic markets

The proposed transfer of Mr. Bentson's indirect ownership interest in Midcontinent to his
estate will enable the continued provision of high-quality communications services to
Midcontinent's customers. As the proposed transaction simply involves the transfer of an
indirect interest in Midcontinent from a recently-deceased individual to his estate,
competition will not be adversely affected by consummation of the proposed transaction.

Conclusion 

For the foregoing reasons, the Applicants respectfully submit that grant of this Joint

Application by the Commission would serve the public interest, convenience and necessity.

Respectfully submitted,

N.L. Bentson
The Estate of N.L. Bentson

J . Harrington
Their Counsel
Dow Lohnes P.L.L.C.
1200 New Hampshire Avenue, NW
Washington, DC 20036
(202) 776-2818
jharrington@dowlohnes.com

Date: AV. )I aetf7
• 	 )
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JOINT INTERNATIONAL AND DOMESTIC SECTION 214 APPLICATION

ESTATE CERTIFICATIONS

I, George Reilly, Personal Representative of the Estate of N.L. Bentsen ("Transferee")

hereby certify the following:

• Transferee is not a foreign carrier, nor is it affiliated with any foreign carrier, within
the meaning of Sections 63.18(i) and 63.09(d) and (e) of the rules of the Federal
Communications Commission. 47 C.F.R. §§ 63.18(1), 63.09(d), (e);

• Transferee does not seek to provide international telecommunications services to any
destination country to which paragraphs (j)(1)44) of Section 63.18 of the
Commission's rules apply;

• Transferee has not agreed to accept special concessions directly or indirectly from
any foreign carrier with respect to any U.S. international route where the foreign
carrier possesses market power on the foreign end of the route and will not enter into
such agreements in the future; and

• No party to this application is subject to a denial of Federal benefits pursuant to
section 5301 of the And-Drug Abuse Act of 1988.

Dated: May//, 2009

George Reilly
Personal Representative, Estate of N.L. Bentsen
150 South Fifth Street
Suite 2300
Minneapolis, MN 55402



Case 1:09-cv-00017-DLH-CSM Document 26-3 	 Filed 07/24/2009 Page 11 of 12

BENTSON CERTIFICATION

On behalf of N.L. Bentson, the undersigned hereby certifies that Mr. Bentson is not

subject to a denial of Federal benefits pursuant to Section 5301 of the Anti-Drug Abuse Act

of 1988.

Dated: May / 2009

N.L. Bentson

By:
	 E67 

George Reilly
Personal Representative, Estate of N.L. Bentson
150 South Fifth Street
Suite 2300
Minneapolis, MN 55402
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READ INSTRUCTIONS CAREFULLY
BEFORE PROCEEDING FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION

REMTTTANCEADVICE
FORM 159

Approved by OMB
3060-0589

Page 1 of 2   

(1)LOCKBOX it

979091

-7.-4:7.7,7 " 	 —

. 	 -
SECTION A - PAYER INFORMATION

(2)PAYER NAME (if paying by credit card enter name exactly as it appears on the card)

Dow Lohnes PLLC
(3) TOTAL AMOUNT PAID (U.S. Dollars and cents)

$1,015.00
(4)STREETADDRESS LINE NO. I

c/o J.G. Harrington, Esq.
(5)STREETADDRESS LINE NO. 2

1200 New Hampshire Ave., NW
(6) CITY

Washington
1(7) STATE

DC
 (8) ZIP CODE
20036

(9) DAYTIME TELEPHONE NUMBER (include area code)

202-776-2818
(10) COUNTRY CODE (if not in U.S.A.)

FCC REGISTRATION NUMBER (FEN) REQUIRED
(11) PAYER (FRN)

0015-7981-68
' 	 '

, 	 2, 
IF MORE THAN ONE APPLICANT, USE CONTINUATION SHEETS (FORM I59-C)

COMPLETE SECTION BELOW FOR EACH SERVICE, IF MORE BOXES ARE NEEDED, USE CONTINUATION SHEET
(13)APPLICANT NAME

Midcontinent Communications
(14)STREETADDRESS LINE NO. 1

410 South Phillips Avenue
(15)STREETADDRESS LINE NO. 2

(16)CITY

Sioux Falls
I (17) STATE 	 I

SD
(18) ZIP CODE

57104 	
..

(19) DAYTIME TELEPHONE NUMBER (include area code) 	 1

605-357-5777
.(20) COUNTRY CODE (if not in U.S.A )

FCC REGISTRATION NUMBER (FEN) REQUIRED
(21) APPLICANT(FRN)

0002-6219-51 	 . .
COMPLETE SECTION C FOR EACH SERVICE, IF MORE BOXES ARE NEEDED, USE CONTINUATION SHEET

(23A) CALL SIGN/OTHER ID

Section 214
(24A) PAYMENT TYPE CODE

C U T
(25A)QUANTITY

(26A) FEE DUE FOR (PTC)

1,015.00
(27A) TOTAL FEE

1,015.00
• 	 •

(28A) FCC CODE I (29A) FCC CODE 2

(23b) CALL SIGN/OTHER ID (24B) PAYMENTTYPE CODE (25B) QUANTITY

, -
(268) FEE DUE FOR (P I t..) (278) TOTAL FEE

(28B) FCC CODE I '(29B) FCC CODE 2

SECTION D - CERTIFICATION
CERTIFICATION STATEMENT
,Allyson Meia

certify under 	 of 	 that the foregoing 	 infonnationpenalty 	 perjury 	 and supporting 	 is true and correct to 	 , .the best of my knowled 	 and beliefs

SIGNATURE	 14-..."' 	 DATE 5/11/2009
EMZEKIELE,CEEDrEcARDiAymEnummuncei

MASTERCARD X 	 VISA 	 AMEX 	 DISCOVER

ACCOUNT NUMBER 5532893022479301
EXPIRATION DATE 6/2010

I hereby authorize 	 to 	 my credit card for the service(s) authorization herein described.

SIGNATURE
DATE  5/11/2009 

COO prim te• la r 10 	 CIO 	 la n r‘r,...... 	 -- - -- -
JULY 2005-FCC FORM 159
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Midcontinent
COMMUNICATIONS

port of our community • part of your

Midcontinent Communications
Midcontinent Communications
3901 N. Louise Avenue
Sioux Falls, SD 57107
1-800-888-1300

www.midcocomm.com, www.midco.net, www.midconews.com

Twitter: midconews Facebook: Careers@Midcontinent Communications

Midcontinent Communications is the Upper Midwest's leading provider of cable television, local
and long distance telephone service, broadband Internet access, and cable advertising
services. Midcontinent's service area includes over 240 communities with over 200,000
customers in North and South Dakota and in Minnesota.

Mission:
Valuing our customers as honored guests by creating and delivering high-quality services that
customers want in exchange for a fair price, developing our employees and treating them fairly,
and contributing to the communities of which we are a part.

Since its beginning in a small movie theater in Minneapolis during the Great Depression,
innovation and foresight have shaped Midcontinent's course for more than 70 years. Today,
Midcontinent is a diversified company with interests in nearly 240 communities throughout North
and South Dakota and in Minnesota. A lasting and successful track record in cable
TV, broadband Internet, telephone services, and cable advertising place Midcontinent in a
leadership role for each of its industries - for today and for the future.

"We're about connecting people, businesses, and schools across our cities and small towns
here in the Great Plains," said Tom Simmons, Senior Vice President of Public Policy for
Midcontinent. "We do all we can to provide our customers with the highest quality programming
and the most innovative technology. Most of us are customers as well, so we know and
understand what people want when it comes to their cable and Internet services and we
appreciate the need and the demand for superior customer service."

While expanding business interests and reaching further out into the region, Midcontinent still
manages to maintain a Midwestern spirit of family, community, tradition and customer care that
sets the stage for the company's success in the years to come. By continually supporting
community efforts and sponsoring events and special projects, Midcontinent remains committed
to being an integral and proactive part of customers' lives.

EXHIBIT
Media Contact: W. Tom Simmons, Senior Vice President of Public Policy
torn simmonsmmi.net Phone: 605-357-5491/1-800-888-1300, ext. 5491
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Community Involvement

Events
Midcontinent is a part of every hometown in our service area. We are actively involved in
these communities throughout North and South Dakota and Minnesota and, as we extend
services to new markets, we seek out productive opportunities to reach out and welcome
customers and their families. We have been a long-time sponsor of special events like
JazzFest in Sioux Falls and we take on a vital role in local community fund drives and
awareness campaigns such as the United Way and Relay for Life. We proudly sponsor
hometown sports and events from fast-paced college hoops, hockey and football to fun
family events like "mutton bustin - at the Rapid City rodeo. We also broadcast many live
home games throughout the year and for many of our sports fans, this is a great service
and a great viewing experience!

Hosting special appearances by local and national celebrities is another way that we
connect to our customers on a local level and bring excitement and entertainment to our
hometowns. We also sponsor information stops by the C-Span Civics Bus, ESPN
Sportsfest, Free Zoo Days and appearances by popular television characters like
Nickelodeon's SpongeBob SquarePants and Dora the Explorer to promote our viewers'
favorite networks.

Cable in the Classroom:
After two decades, Cable in the Classroom continues to provide our schools with
commercial-free educational and informational programming to help better prepare our next
generation for their future. Cable in the Classroom allows children to tour the worlds of
science, culture, language and the arts, all without leaving their desks, via free cable hook-
ups and programming. Midcontinent has connected nearly 500 local schools to cable
through this program.

Giving Back
The Midcontinent Media Foundation was established as a philanthropic organization in
1987 to help serve Midcontinent Communications' communities. Throughout its years in
operation, the Midcontinent Media Foundation has granted over $2,000,000 in private
grants to 501(c)(3) organizations. Many of the allocated grants have served as seed money
for new philanthropic initiatives and also to enhance existing programs including those
addressing health and human service issues, funding of building improvements and
equipment for schools and non-profit facilities, and for local arts and recreation activities.

[2]
Media Contact: W. Tom Simmons, Senior Vice President of Public Policy
torn simmons@mmi.net  Phone: 605-357-5491/1-800-888-1300, ext. 5491
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Fact Sheet

Ownership:

Midcontinent Communications is a subsidiary of Midcontinent Media Inc., based in
Minneapolis, MN.

Operations Center:

3901 N. Louise Ave.
Sioux Falls, SD 57107
1-800-888-1300

Leadership:

Patrick McAdaragh, President — Chief Executive Officer
Dick Busch, Chief Operating Officer
Steven Grosser, Chief Financial Officer
W. Thomas Simmons, Senior Vice President of Public Policy

Employees:

631 employees in South Dakota
187 employees in North Dakota
69 employees in Minnesota

Brands:
Midcontinent Communications® MidcoNet® Broadband, MidcoNet® Limited, MidcoNet®
Preferred, MidcoNet® Max, MidcoNet® Ultimate, MidcoNet® Tunes, MidcoNet® Plus,
Midcontinent Business Solutions®, NPNetT" 

Service Area: Serving over 200,000 customers 240 communities in North Dakota, South
Dakota, and Minnesota.

Capabilities:

Residential
• Cable and High Definition Television
• Broadband Internet
• Digital Phone service

Business Solutions
• Voice
• Data
• Video
• Advertising Sales

Media Contact: W. Tom Simmons, Senior Vice President of Public Policy
	 [3].

tom simmonsa.mmi.net  Phone: 605-357-5491/1-800-888-1300, ext. 5491
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Where We Are
South Dakota — Aberdeen, Baltic, Bath, Belle Fourche, Big Stone City, Black Hawk, Boulder Canyon,
Bowdle, Box Elder, Bristol, Canton, Central City, Colton, Country Village, Countryside, Crooks,
Deadwood, Doland, Ellsworth AFB, Frederick, Ft. Pierre, Gayville, Grant County, Harrisburg, Hart Ranch,
Humboldt, Huron, Ipswich, Iroquois, Java, Lead, Madison, Meckling, Milbank, Miller, Mina, Mitchell,
Mobridge, Piedmont, Pierre, Prairiewood, Rapid City, Renner, Rimrock, Roscoe, Roslyn, Selby, Shindler,
Sioux Falls, St. Lawrence, Sturgis, Summerset, Tea, Vermillion, Warner, Watertown, Waubay, Webster,
Whitewood, Wolsey, Yankton

North Dakota — Anamoose, Aneta, Arthur, Barlow, Beulah, Binford, Bisbee, Bismarck, Bottineau,
Bowman, Buffalo, Burlington, Buxton, Cando, Carrington, Casselton, Center, Cooperstown, Devils Lake,
Dodge, Drake, Drayton, Dunseith, Edmore, Emerado, Esmond, Fairmount, Fessenden, Frontier, .

Galesburg, Gladstone, Glen Ullin, Glenburn, Golden Valley, Goodrich, Grafton, Grand Forks, Grand
Forks AFB, Grandin, Halliday, Hankinson, Hannaford, Harvey, Harwood, Hatton, Hazen, Hebron,
Hettinger, Hillsboro, Hope, Horace, Hunter, Kensal, Killdeer, Lakota, Langdon, Lansford, Larimore,
Leeds, Leonard, Lidgerwood, Lincoln, Mandan, Manvel, Mapleton, Mayville, McClusky, Minnewaukan,
Minot, Minot AFB, Minto, Mohall, Mott, New Rockford, New Salem, Oxbow, Page, Pick City, Portland,
Reeder, Reiles Acres, Reynolds, Rhame, Richardton, Riverdale, Rolette, Rolla, Rugby, Ruthville,
Scranton, South Heart, St. John, Stanton, Starkweather, Surrey, Thompson, Towner, Turtle Lake,
Underwood, Wahpeton, Walhalla, Washburn, West Fargo, Williston, Willow City, Wimbledon, Zap

Minnesota — Babbitt, Balaton, Bemidji, Breckenridge, Canby, Cass Lake, Crookston, Dilworth, E. Grand
Forks, Ely, Fairmont, Glencoe, Hallock, International Falls, Littlefork, Moorhead (July 2009), Ortonville,
Oslo, Ranier, Sabin, Sherbum, Soudan, Tower, Turtle River, Wilton, Winton

"f_4441 , CV ir1:14;

Media Contact: W. Tom Simmons, Senior Vice President of Public Policy
	 [41

torn simmonsOmmi.net Phone: 605-357-5491/1-800-888-1300, ext. 5491
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Company History

In 1933, a young Joe L. Floyd convinced his boss Eddie Ruben to build and operate the Granada Theatre
in Sioux Falls, South Dakota. This was the start of a lifelong partnership that launched a chain of
successful theaters throughout South Dakota, North Dakota and Minnesota. In 1952, when broadcaster
Larry Bentson became a partner, the company expanded into communications by acquiring KELO Radio
in Sioux Falls, and a construction permit for a TV station that a year later became KELO-TV.

From this early framework emerged the progressive company known as Midcontinent Communications.
Today, Midcontinent proudly provides over 240 communities with broadband Internet, cable and High
Definition television, and local and long distance phone service for homes and businesses. Along the
way, Midcontinent has shared in making this region a great place to live, work and play by supporting
sports teams, fundraisers, educational and cultural events, and more.

Midcontinent Communications continues to thrive by adjusting to market trends while sustaining the
values instilled by the entrepreneurial trio of Ruben, Floyd, and Bentson. Midcontinent's drive for an •
exceptional customer experience fuels the company's growth and sets the stage for success for years to
come. From day one, Midcontinent's founders never wanted the Dakotas to be left behind in technology.
Thanks to their vision, we never will be.

Midcontinent Communications Timeline
1931: Midcontinent founders pioneer state-of-the-art theatres in Minneapolis, MN.
1937: KELO-AM radio signs on in Sioux Falls.
1948: Midcontinent pioneers Starlite and Moonlite drive-in movie theatres in the upper Midwest.
1952: Ruben, Floyd and Bentson purchase Midcontinent Broadcasting Co.
1953: KELO-TV signs on as South Dakota's first television station.
1967: Midcontinent constructs its first cable system in Huron, SD.
1969: Midcontinent makes Pierre, SD one of the nation's first state capitols to have cable.
1974: Midcontinent Data is founded in Aberdeen, SD.
1980: Cable is brought to Mitchell, SD.
1981: Washington International Teleport begins providing satellite communications services to local communities.
1982: Midcontinent becomes the first company in SD to offer competitive long distance phone service.
1986: Midcontinent launches 24-hour answering, order-taking and paging services.
1987: Creation of the Midcontinent Media Foundation.
1988: Midcontinent cable advertising sales begins operations.
1993: Pay-Per-View is introduced to customers.
1995: Midcontinent Broadband Internet Service (MidcoNet®) is established.
1996: Telecommunications Act signed into law opening competition in voice, digital and data services.
1997: Launch of Midcontinent's first local broadband business network to the Postal Service in Sioux Falls.
1998: Midcontinent creates redundant fiber ring allowing smaller communities to receive more advanced services.
1999: The Network Operating Center is created to monitor Midcontinent's growing broadband network.
2000: Midcontinent offers digital cable and Augustana College becomes the first trio bundle customer.
2001: Launched first facilities-based residential telephone service in Sioux Falls.
2002: Expanded redundant fiber network.
2003: MidcoNet® Max is introduced; High Definition (HD) is launched in the larger markets.
2004: DVR is launched; MidcoNet gets even faster with 8 Mbps download and 256 Kbps upload speeds.
2005: The first Midcontinent wireless hotspot is launched for the Huron Regional Airport.
2006: Digital Phone service is launched in select cities; Video On Demand programming begins. .

2007: Midcontinent increases the speed of MidcoNet to up to 10 Mbps download and 512 Kbps upload.
2008: In February, Midcontinent begins offering service to the community of West Fargo, ND.
2009: Midcontinent launches services to eight new markets in Minnesota. The NPNet brand is introduced. In June,

Midcontinent launches DOCSIS 3.0 technology in North and South Dakota and in Minnesota, and MidcoNet
Ultimate is introduced.

[51
Media Contact: W. Tom Simmons, Senior Vice President of Public Policy
torn simmonsammi.net Phone: 605-357-5491/1-800-888-1300, ext. 5491
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Midcontinent Communications Service Offerings

Residential
Cable Television: Midcontinent offers cutting-edge cable television, including access to
sports and movie packages, High Definition (HD) television and Digital Video Recorder
(DVR) service.

Cable Service — More than 200 channels of cable programming, 48 channels of
digital, commercial-free music and an Interactive Channel Guide.
High Definition Service — High Definition television gives the viewer a vivid lifelike
picture and a clearer sound quality.
DVR — DVR is a whole new way of watching TV. Customers can record and save
their favorite shows and movies and view them whenever they want.
On Demand — Instant access to thousands of hours of free content that changes
monthly.

Phone: Midcontinent provides a digital phone option that is reliable and easy-to-use.
Midcontinent digital phone comes with unlimited local and long distance calling anytime to
anywhere. Special features include: Caller ID, Call Waiting ID, 3-Way Calling, Speed Call
30, Distinctive Ringing, Last Call Return, Call Forwarding and Continuous Redial.

Internet: MidcoNete Preferred offers one of the fastest Internet services available, with
downloads up to 15 Mbps. MidcoNet® Preferred also offers email accounts with enhanced
Spam filtering and virus protection. Also available: MidcoNet® Max and MidcoNet® Limited
and now, MidcoNet Ultimate powered by DOCSIS 3.0 (D3) technology.

Business Services

Voice: Midcontinent offers business owners the option of having a regular business line, a
T-1 line for local and long distance calling or even a toll-free number for added credibility.
Midcontinent helps customers analyze phone usage patterns and marketing effectiveness,
while customizing pricing options for each business.

Data: To keep up with a fast-paced business world, Midcontinent data services move even
faster. We can design a plan with bandwidths to fit any company's needs, which can range
from basic cable modem Internet service to a dedicated T-1 connection or advanced
Ethernet solutions.

Video: Midcontinent Video customers can get the latest breaking news or stock reports for
their office, or turn a waiting room into a living room. These customers can choose cable or
even HD cable service for the latest technology.

Digital Music: Midcontinent also provides 48 commercial-free channels of crisp, clear digital
music to fill the workplace with continuous music from every genre.

Ad Sales: Businesses advertise with Midcontinent because, as the largest cable provider in
the region, we reach more than 80% of the households in the communities we serve.
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Home I Business Records Search

MISSOURI VALLEY COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

Corporation Details

System ID: 18204400
Type: BUSINESS CORPORATION
Status: Active & Good Standing
Original File Date: 06/25/2002
State of Origin: North Dakota

Phone: (406) 783-5125

Effective Date: 06/25/2002

Nature of Business

PROVIDING TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES

Principal Office

HWY 13 SOUTH PO BOX 600 SCOBEY, MT 59263-0600

Registered Agent

NATIONAL INFORMATION SOLUTIONS COOPERAT

IVE, INC.

3201 NYGREN DR
MANDAN, ND 58554-1480
Established Date: May 17, 2004

Authorized Shares

Class Number Par Value

1000.000000 $.000000

Generate an Annual Report To File

To Generate a Annual Report form to be filed with the Secretary of State, select the appropriate year of
the report you intend to file. This report does not contain details of a report previously filed with the
Secretary of State. The annual report years reflected are an indication of the various report forms
available in this site and is not an indication that an entity needs to file reports for all years. Missing
years indicate that the forms for the missing year have not yet been deployed to the website, or have
already been removed, and can be obtained by contacting the Secretary of State.

2007 2008 2009 (generates a forms-fillable pdf in a new pop-up window)

Return to Search Results   EXHIBIT  

https://secure.apps.state.nd.us/sc/busnsrehibusnSearch.htm#SearchResults 	 7124 2009
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th We use Secure Sockets Layer (SSL) encryption technology to ensure your information is secure and protected.
ZWIttiootts a new window (pop-up). 	 Disclaimer 	 Privacy Policy
W3C WAI AA, CSS, XHTML Compliant 1 Copyright 2006. All Rights Reserved. The State of North Dakota.

https://secure.apps.state.nd.us/sc/busnsrch/busnSearch.htm#Search_Results 	 7/24/2009
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